INTERNATIONAL EQUITY RFP
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

1.	We are completing the Emerging and Frontier Markets RFP #715-15.1004 and just wanted to confirm the Investment Policy Statement on the website is applicable to both International and Emerging Markets or if there is a separate policy for emerging markets. 

Currently, there is not a dedicated section for EM equity.  

2.	Regarding the Oklahoma Teachers search for international equity managers, will the plan consider international small cap proposals?  I see there is an allocation by the plan to the space, but not sure if this search will include small cap specific managers.  We also have a strategy that invests in both developed and emerging markets with a typical 85%/15% split, respectively.  Please advise.

We are not currently searching for dedicated small cap managers.   An Int’l Small ACWI ex-US product would also not be considered.

3.	Would your client consider a Low Volatility Equity ACWI Solution?  

Yes.  This is a wide ranging search for talented managers.

4.	Will the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma consider a regional strategy, such as a European Equity or European High Dividend Equity strategy, for the International Equity: Developed and Emerging search?  What about an Asia only strategy?

Yes.  This is a wide ranging search for talented managers.  We have not hired regional specialists in the past but will consider doing so.  We do not anticipate funding single country managers.

5.	Please could you clarify whether or not your client will consider a Global mandate?

This search is for non-US equity managers.

6.	Will you accept an international equity strategy for this mandate that does not invest in emerging markets? For example, our strategy is benchmarked against the MSCI EAFE Index. Would this be an appropriate benchmark for this mandate?

Yes.  This is a wide ranging search for talented managers.

7.	Please provide me with a practical definition of Item B: Offeror must have at least three major tax exempt clients. 

We are looking for tax exempt clients who display characteristics of sophisticated institutional investors.  When we refer to tax-exempt, we intend to focus on institutional, US based investors who are exempt from tax because of their fund type, not their geographic location.  We prefer to see 3 significant current clients firm wide.  They do not have to be clients of the strategy.



8.	Can you please confirm if there are preferred benchmarks for these mandates?

Benchmarks have not yet been determined. 

9.	What would the initial mandate size be for the International Equity: Developed and Emerging Markets search (RFP # 715-15-1003)?

To be determined.  

10.	What would the initial mandate size be for the International Equity: Emerging and Frontier Markets search (RFP # 715-15-1004)?

To be determined.

11.	With respect to the Emerging Markets Equity RFP, are you looking for an Emerging Markets equity manager that invests in Emerging Market equities AND Frontier Markets?  Would you consider an Emerging Markets equity manager that invests in Emerging Markets equities only?

We will consider both strategies described in the question.

12.	For the Developed search, we can offer a top down Active/Passive strategy that can act as an inexpensive (compared to fully active) core portion of the allocation. That would allow your client to reach for alpha from different managers.  In Active/Passive we are active at the country, sector and currency levels and implement passively.  That strategy has a 20 year track record and virtually all our clients are large public plans. Is this a strategy that may benefit your client? 

We are open to hybrid strategies.

13. We have a stand-alone Frontier strategy that may fit for the Emerging/Frontier piece of the search.  However, many of the conditions and questions do not seem to apply to a stand-alone Frontiers search.  Namely, AUM and track record. Will stand alone Frontiers questionnaire be appropriate?

Yes.  

14.	Would an Emerging Markets Healthcare strategy be considered?

We have not invested in sector specific portfolios and do not anticipate funding one at this time.

15.	Will the plan be allocating to more than one mandate?

Most likely.

16.	If presenting a developed markets international strategy, is there a preference for inclusion of emerging markets or not?

Yes.  

17.	Is a dedicated frontier markets strategy of interest or solely opportunistic frontier within a mainstream emerging markets mandate?

Both would be considered.

18.	Would Gregory W Group and the plan be proponents of emerging markets small cap?  If so, with 4 years of performance history, but over 20yrs for broad emerging and team, does this qualify us based on the terms below?

Yes.  

19.	Is the mandate purely for emerging and frontier markets or would there also be investments in developed markets? The portfolio characteristics question refers to MSCI ACWI ex US.

There are two RFPs, one focused on Developed markets, the other on Emerging markets.  Either one can invest opportunistically on the other categories but are expected to focus on either Developed or Emerging or Frontier.   

20.	Is there, or will there be, any EME specific language added to the IPS (as it pertains to the outcome of this search)?

IPS language will be added as necessary.  Selected managers will likely participate in the development of relevant language.

21.	Is there an asset level requirement for strategy submission?

No.

Q.	Is the Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System open to a customized mandate? We have investment capabilities with developed and emerging market equity exposure but currently are managed to developed equity benchmarks.

Yes.

22.	Does Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System have a target risk profile or tracking error for this mandate?

No.
23.	Our firm manages numerous international equity strategies from several teams around the world.  Listing all clients gained and lost over 5 years across all international equity would be an extensive list.  May we address all clients gained and lost (regardless of product) by the specific investment teams managing the strategies proposed to OTRS?
Yes.
24.	Our firm manages Global All-Country mandates and we would like to demonstrate carve-out performance of the Non-US equity track record.  In addition to this carve-out performance may we also include the full Global All-Country composite history as supplement to address performance & composite questions?
Yes.
25.	RE:   V. A.  PROPOSALS SHALL BE NO LONGER THAN FIFTY (50) PAGES IN LENGTH . . . – Please clarify if this limit is single-sided or double-sided, and if it includes exhibits.

The proposal shall be no more than fifty printed pages.  Exhibits are not included in this limit.  Brevity is very much appreciated.
26.	Will the successful bidder(s) have an opportunity to negotiate in good faith the final version of the IMA or is our response to the RFP(s) to be considered binding?
Yes.  The final IMA is subject to good-faith negotiations, but will be required to substantially conform to the RFP response.
27.	If a firm is planning to submit more than one proposal, is it necessary to provide the financial reports for each proposal separately?
Yes.  Please submit the documents separately.
28.	For pricing purposes, can you please provide a range of assets to be managed for each mandate? Do you plan to hire more than one manager for each mandate? Is the client seeking a specific style or type of approach (i.e. active/passive or value/growth, etc.)?
This is a wide ranging search for talented managers.  We do not have a preset range of assets for each mandate.  It is likely that more than one manager may be hired for each mandate.  However, no managers could be hired for each mandate.  We are not searching for any specific styles or type of investments.
29.	Additionally, we would like to propose a few exemptions to the Investment Guidelines. Do we submit those now or just refer to them within the RFP?

Please identify and proposed exemptions in your proposal.

30.	Is there a preferred benchmark for these allocations?

No.

31.	Are you looking for core approaches or would you consider strategies with style tilts?

We will consider strategies with style tilts.

32.	Do you have an excess return objective you're trying to achieve?

At least 1.00% above benchmark, net of fees, per year.
33.	Are you seeking standalone EM and FM strategies or an approach that invests in both?

We are open to standalone or combined approaches.

34.	Are you open to considering both fundamental and quantitative strategies?

Yes.

35.	Please clarify what is meant by 'Cost' (bid/offer spread) in Question 23 in the Investment Process section. 

Total cost of trading to the client.

36.	How do you define a “major” tax exempt client? Is it based on a minimum asset level?
Are offshore clients considered tax-exempt with respect to the minimum qualifications?

Major clients are those that exhibit the attributes of sophisticated institutional investors.  When we refer to tax-exempt, we intend to focus on institutional, US based investors who are exempt from tax because of their fund type, not their geographic location.

37.	Organization – Question 20: We have a number of clients that we cannot disclose personal information. Can we provide you with a complete list of our clients by type?  

You may.

38.	The Investment Policy Statement (IPS) references certain investment manager requirements relating to the System's commission recapture program.  Because this is a non-U.S. equity mandate, we would be limited in the amount of commission recapture/directed brokerage we would be able to generate with respect to this mandate.   Specifically, it has been increasingly difficult to find brokers on our top twenty broker list to participate in commission recapture/directed brokerage programs for non-US equities.  While we would agree to make best efforts to participate in the commission recapture program, we cannot guarantee meaningful recapture levels.  If selected, we would seek to clarify that our primary objective when transacting on behalf of the account would be to seek to achieve best execution, and we would also seek an acknowledgment from the Board that we may not be able to direct non-U.S. equity trades while seeking best execution.  Would this be acceptable?
 
Yes.

39.	We do not have any compensation arrangements in place with any third parties to solicit investments with respect to the System; however, the salesperson would be compensated based on a percentage of revenue generated from this mandate if selected.  Is disclosure under the Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy required with respect to a firm's own in-house personnel who are compensated with respect to new mandates won based on commissions on new sales?

No. 
 
40.	Regarding the restriction to ownership of greater than 5% of the outstanding shares of a single issuer in international equity portfolios.  Is this restriction limited to the proposed OTRS international equity portfolio or would it also apply to aggregate assets managed for OTRS by a single manager (across multiple mandates should that be applicable) or at the manager complex level?

Total owned by the manager on OTRS’ behalf.
 
41.	Could you please confirm that the non-US currency denominated securities restriction would not apply to an International Equity mandate?

It would not apply.

42.	Do we need to submit five thumb drives with the performance worksheet, along with the five hard copies?

No.  Please refer to the instructions.

43.	Regarding the page limit: Are voluntary attachments (not requested by the proposal questionnaire) included in the fifty page limit for proposals?

No.  Cover sheets, appendices, attachments, and spreadsheets are not included in the page count.  However, brevity is very much appreciated.

44.	Section VII (A) of the investment guidelines prohibits direct investments in private placements, would we be able to seek exception from this prohibition as set out in Section VII (B)?

You would be free to seek exception, but the Board may not grant your request.

45.	Under Section VII (F) 2 the investment guidelines restrict investment in a single issuer to 7%, would OTRS be open to a 10% limit?

You would be free to seek exception, but the Board may choose to not grant your request.

46.	Under Section VII (F) 3 the investment guidelines restrict the holding to 5% of the outstanding shares of any one issuer, is this restriction based on a separately managed account for OTRS and not with reference to the exposure of the manager as a whole

Restriction applies to OTRS only.

47.	Under section VII (F) 4 there is a restriction of 30% in any one country save for the UK and Japan where 35% is allowed, would OTRS consider a manager where the restriction is 40% and not 30%.

You would be free to seek exception, but the Board may choose to not grant your request.

48.	Under section VII (F) 5, International equity portfolios need to invest greater than 50% of the portfolio in developed market as defined by the MSCI, presumably this restriction does not apply to emerging market managers?

Correct.

49.	Would OTRS be prepared to invest in a comingled portfolio as our minimum for a separately managed account is $200m?

Currently, OTRS uses commingled accounts in select situations.  However, for active management, their preference is for separate accounts.

50.	Does the 'non-US' portfolio have any required territory diversification?

Please see current investment policy.

51.	Can the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma include listed African equities in their portfolio and if so are there any restrictions such as territories, sectors, liquidity?

There are restrictions for territories or sectors.  The System  prefers to have adequate liquidity for their listed investments.

52.	Are there any other restrictions we need to be aware of in terms of the ‘non-US’ portfolio?

No.

53.	Before answering the International Equity RFP, we would like to know whether your client is willing to consider quantitative managers.

They are willing to consider quantitative managers.

54.	Our firm has 10 years’ experience managing emerging equities within its International and Global portfolios.  Would this meet the requirement, or does the plan require managers to have five years’ experience in a dedicated emerging markets equity strategy?

This would meet the requirement.

55.	Soft Dollar Prohibition:  Q3 on page 8 of the RFP asks whether we have the capacity to manage an account that prohibits the use of soft dollars. We pay for certain research through trading commissions.  Do Section 28e safe harbor provisions still apply - will you allow research to be paid with dealing commissions if they fall under the Safe Harbor Act?

No.  

56.	Q11 on page 16 asks for excess return versus the benchmark.  Does the plan prefer geometric excess or arithmetic excess returns?

Geometric.  

57.	Page 20:  Can you let us know whether you prefer MSCI Industry Group or MSCI Industry?

MSCI Industry Group.

58.	Can you confirm that the Plan’s preferred benchmark for the International Equity strategy is the MSCI ACWI ex US, and that performance stats within this RFP should be referenced against the MSCI ACWI ex US Index?  If our primary benchmark is the MSCI EAFE, may we show attribution and performance stats versus this index?

OTRS currently uses MSCI ACWI ex US as their primary large cap international equity benchmark.  Please display your portfolio’s performance vs. the MSCI ACWI ex US.

59.	For the Emerging Equity strategy, the benchmark listed is the MSCI ACWI ex US.  Can we show performance stats versus our preferred benchmark, MSCI EM?

You may.

60.	On page 18:  “Any instrument, to which these Investment Guidelines do not explicitly prohibit, that is not expressly allowed by the applicable mandate specific guidelines, should be requested through the exception process”.   Will the Plan be able to provide a list of permissible instruments for the portfolio?

Please refer to the IPS for guidance.

61.	Referring to page 11, can you provide a list of portfolio characteristics you require?

The required characteristics are included in the tables included in the RFP.

62.	Risk and Return Attribution analysis of any granted exceptions to investment policy analysis.
Can you clarify this requirement?

Managers who ask for and are granted investment policy exemptions are required to report on the performance impact of the exception on a regular basis.

63.	In the RFP, it asks for a file containing product returns to be copied to a thumb drive to be included in the response. Would it be acceptable to put the file on a CD, instead? Our information systems policies do not allow for the use of thumb drives.

Please use a thumb drive as we no longer use optical drives and will not be able to read a CD.

64.	Please clarify what type of non-U.S. equity mandate(s) and respective benchmarks are you looking for?  Are you looking for ACWI-Ex U.S. strategies that blend developed and emerging/frontier markets equities or will you be considering stand-alone mandates for both emerging and frontier markets equities?

This is a wide ranging search for investment talent.  We may ultimately select blended or standalone portfolios.  

65.	The Investment Policy Statement on the website doesn’t appear to reflect investment guidelines that will support stand-alone emerging market equity mandates, will this be updated for the potentially new stand-along EM & Frontier mandates?

It will be updated to reflect new investment allocations.

66.	Can you confirm if your Emerging Markets manager will have discretion to make an allocation to Frontier markets within the portfolio.

Yes, Emerging Markets managers will have discretion to make allocations to Frontier markets.

67.	We are proposing our Core EAFE product which is managed with an internal guideline of maximum 10% to Emerging Markets. Would this fit within the level of EM Exposure that is anticipated in this strategy?

That would potentially be acceptable.

68.	Is the search for one manager that offers a blended strategy (EM and FM)?  Or are you breaking down EM and FM as multiple allocations?  

We may select blended or standalone allocations.

69.	If you are looking for one manager, is the EM portion all cap or will the client consider (EM Small Cap with a blend of Frontier)?  

We would consider the structures you mention.

70.	If this is one or multiple allocations, what is the size of the mandates understanding that some strategies are capacity constrained?  

We have not determined mandate sizes or number of allocations within each search.

71.	How is the client looking to gain exposure to the markets (SMA, LP or Mutual Fund vehicle)?  

The client prefers separate accounts.

72.	Is our capacity/liquidity an issue? It allows us to combine the best quality and valuation in EM without compromising on either. We could possibly take another 50m based on our current waitlist.

We have made initial allocations to managers at $50 million.

73.	Is our volatility an issue? 

This is a wide ranging search for talented investors.

74.	Is our strategy an issue? We don't mirror the EM index Due to the limited universe, we expanded to all of EM, in which we have a very long tenure as a firm. Is our expansion to all of EM an issue? 

This is a wide ranging search for talented investors.

75.	Are our terms/fees an issue? Class A: 1 yr lock, quarterly redemptions with 90 days notice, at 1.5% management and 20% performance (no hurdle); Class B: 2 yr lock, quarterly redemptions with 90 days notice and 2 yr investor level gate (1/8 redeemable per quarter), at 1.5% management and 15% performance (no hurdle).

Currently, OTRS does not have any long-only managers with fee structures like you describe.

76.	Is our disclosure an issue? Again, we only disclose our top 5 holdings as of year end. We do this in order to both give our investors a sense of our holdings/process and to ensure them the best investment opportunities due to the illiquid nature of many of our securities.

OTRS requires transparency.

77.	Can we submit more than one strategy per RFP?

You may.

78.	Should all data provided be as of March 31, 2015?

Yes.

79.	The Investment Policy Statement states that non-USD denominated securities are not permitted, is this restriction also applicable to the International Equity mandate?

That restriction is not applicable to this mandate.

80.	The Services Provided section of the RFP mentions the preparation of special analyses as requested by OTRS staff – is this in addition to the reports listed in the Investment Policy Statement? If so, can you provide an example of the type of reporting required here as well as the frequency of these requests? 

In the past, special reports have been mostly related to attribution, trading cost, and/or individual security research pieces.

81.	Can you disclose the name of your custodian and whether they are also the securities lending agent?

The current custodian is JPMorgan.  Northern Trust will be taking over as custodian on July 1, 2015.  Northern Trust will function as the System’s securities lending agent.

82.	Do you seek to direct a specific percentage of brokerage commissions?

No.

83.	The performance is to be provided according to CFA Institute Standards – is GIPS (Global Investment Performance Standards) compliant performance data acceptable?

Yes.

84.	Could you please provide an estimated asset range for the Emerging and Frontier Markets equity allocation so that we can ensure that we can provide the Plan the most appropriate vehicle(s) and/or fee schedule to meet their needs?

As we have not designed the eventual allocation among managers or mandates, it is difficult to answer your question.  Typically, initial portfolio fundings range from $50 million to $150 million.  However, that may not be the case with this search.

85.	Regarding the Oklahoma Teacher’s Developed Markets International Equity search, on page 18 of their IPS, in Section VII A 2 under Ineligible Securities, it states:
	
2. Securities denominated in non-US currency, unless provided in accordance with an applicable mandate

Can we presume, that this mandate would be exempt and the client will accept both ordinary shares as well as ADRs?

That is correct.

86.	Is being able to manage an account that prohibits the use of soft dollars a requirement to be selected for this allocation?

Yes.

87.	Would you consider a strategy made up of closed-end funds?  We manage a strategy  with significant institutional assets, a long and attractive track record, and an efficient way to access Frontier.  

Yes.

88.	In relation to Part II - ‘Services Desired’, point B. Our investment research is generally proprietary, so we would not be able to make this freely available. We would be pleased to provide access to our intellectual capital publications and webcasts. Does this meet your requirements?

Yes, this meets the requirements.

89.	With regards to Question 2 of the “Organization” section, could you please provide us with a copy of the Investment Policy Statement?  We have obtained a copy from the www.ok.gov website, but we’d like to be sure that we are referring to the current version of this document.

The version on the website is the current version.  Investment policies may be revised upon selection of managers.

90.	With regards to Question 2 in the “Fee” section, could you please confirm if you are asking whether we have a separate fee scale for public pension fund sponsors? 

Correct.

91.	Could you please confirm if we are permitted to use our own document template or are we required to use the document template provided?

You may use your own document template.

92.	For the first are you looking for an International strategy or an EM strategy (without Frontier Markets)? Or a combined Developed and EM Strategy?

We are conducting two very wide ranging talent searches.  We are looking at developed + emerging strategies, developed only strategies, emerging + developed, emerging only, and frontier only strategies.

93.	For the second, can you confirm that you are looking for a strategy that has both EM and Frontier markets?

We are conducting two very wide ranging talent searches.  We are looking at developed + emerging strategies, developed only strategies, emerging + developed, emerging only, and frontier only strategies.

94.	We would like to propose our Emerging Markets strategy and/or Frontier Markets strategy. Should we submit two separate RFPs for our two capabilities, or are you primarily seeking a manager with exposure to Frontier and/or Developed markets as appropriate?

Please submit two separate RFPs.

95.	We have discretion in our Emerging Market capability to invest in companies listed on non-benchmark exchanges (e.g., developed countries) with significant activities in emerging markets, or companies listed on Frontier exchanges. As such, should we complete the “International Equity - Developed and Emerging Markets” (RFP #715-15-1003) or “International Equity – Emerging and Frontier Markets” (RFP #715-15-1004) document? The documents appear to be nearly identical, but please advise if you have a preference in this situation.

In very broad terms, RFP #715-15-1003 is seeking managers primarily investing in developed markets.  RFP #715-15-1004 is seeking managers primarily investing in emerging markets.

96.	Please advise on the expected proposed mandate size(s)?

To be determined.

97.	Would you prefer a separately-managed or commingled/pooled vehicle for the proposed mandate? 

OTRS prefers separate accounts.

98.	As this is an International Equity search, we have reviewed the appropriate IPS sections. Will Item 5 under F. International equity be revised (i.e., “international equity portfolios will invest no less than 50% of the portfolio in companies located in developed markets as developed by MSCI”)? 
If so, could you please indicate what the potential guideline(s) may be for the proposed GEM and Frontier strategies? 

The applicable IPS sections will be revised with manager input upon hiring.

99.	For the Organization section, Question 19 – due to client confidentiality reasons, we typically do not provide client references at this stage of a search. Will this exclude us from consideration? 
We would of course be pleased to provide client references if we proceed to a later stage of your search.

We require references at a later stage of the process.  Any contact with your references will be extremely discreet.

100.	I see that the OK TRS search has been initiated to replace two large-cap managers.  Does that mean you will be searching for large-cap managers only or may I submit our international small-cap product?

This is a wide ranging search for talented investors.  However, we recently completed a search for dedicated international developed markets small cap managers.  We do not anticipate adding to our roster of small cap managers at this time.  However, emerging + frontier markets small cap managers would be considered. 

101.	We are submitting two RFPs – one for our Emerging Markets strategy and one for our Frontier Markets strategy.  May we submit the quarterly performance information (question 2, page 15) in two separate files (one for EM, one for Frontier) on one thumb drive, or do we need one thumb drive per strategy?  Further to this, when we send the four hard copies to the Gregory Group, do we need four thumb drives, or will one suffice?

Please submit one thumb drive per strategy.

102.	Open to another small cap manager?

This is a wide ranging search for talented investors.  We recently completed a search for developed market small cap managers.  We do not anticipate adding to that roster at this time.  However, emerging + frontier markets small cap managers would be considered. 

103.	Regarding the three minimum criteria, can they define specified services?  Does that mean the proposed strategy?  Or are they willing to accept experience managing European and Japanese strategies as international experience?

Firm wide experience will be considered.

104.	Does OTRS or Gregory W Group have a preference regarding systematic/quantitative vs. fundamental strategies?

This is a wide ranging search for talented investments.  We have selected both systematic/quantitative and fundamental strategies in the past.

105.	Are there any limitations/preferences to the vehicle in which the proposed strategy is managed (i.e. Commingled, Separate account, 40-Act)?

OTRS typically invests in separate accounts.

106.	Does OTRS/Gregory W Group have a preference between a concentrated portfolio with a small number of holdings (i.e. 30-50) vs. a more diversified portfolio with a larger number of holdings (i.e. 90-120)? 

This is a wide ranging search for talented investments.  We have selected both concentrated and more diversified strategies in the past.

107.	Is there a specific market cap that the proposed strategy will target (i.e. large, mid, small)?

No target.  However, please see above about dedicated small cap strategies.

108.	Is there an expected size for the allocation to Developed v. Emerging markets?

Not yet.

109.	Will there be a target turnover rate for the strategy proposed?

No.

110.	Will OTRS/Gregory W Group consider passive proposals?

The international equity portfolio currently has a passive manager.  We are satisfied with their results.

111.	Does OTRS/Gregory W Group have a desired level of tracking error for the proposed strategy?

No.

112.	Would a strategy benchmarked to an Emerging Markets benchmark which allocates to Frontier Market securities be eligible to respond?

Yes.

113.  Will strategies with track records of less than 5 years be considered?

Yes.  We are not requiring five years of live returns in the strategies.

114.	Question 24; discuss any periods in which each proposed strategy experienced exceptionally good/bad performance or high/low volatility.  In essence, provide context and explanation for any periods that had significant variances from the benchmark.  Can you please elaborate on what you deem to be “exceptionally” good/bad performance and what metrics should be used to measure high/low volatility?  Are there specific time frames that you’d like this information for (i.e. calendar years, etc.)?

Please use calendar year periods.  Exceptional can mean +/- 5% of the benchmark return.

115.	The mandate specified is ACWI-ex US in both RFPs. Are EM only products and Developed-only products eligible for this search?

Yes.

116.	Regarding the requested portfolio characteristics, is it permissible to provide Beta, Alpha, and R-Squared figures against our product’s standard benchmark (MSCI EM) rather than against the listed MSCI ACWI ex US?

Please provide them relative to the MSCI EM for Emerging + Frontier Markets submissions.

117.	F4 International Equity portfolios will not concentrate greater than 35% of the market value of funds under advisement in issuers from the UK or Japan and 30% of the market value of funds under advisement in issuers from any other single country.  Can I ask if this applies to a purely Emerging Markets mandate and is irrespective of the weighting of a single country in the Emerging Markets index?

This currently applies to developed market portfolios.  Emerging markets guidelines will be developed later in the portfolio design process.

118.	Are OTRS and Gregory W Group open to utilizing an institutional class of a mutual fund vehicle for this search? If so, recognizing that mutual funds have their own detailed investment parameters and restrictions set by their prospectuses, could you please confirm that the investment restrictions, reporting and fiduciary appointment requirements outlined in the OTRS’ Investment Policy Statement would not apply in the event a mutual fund is selected? 

Given its size, OTRS prefers separate accounts.

119.	Would an investment management organization be precluded from being hired by OTRS and Gregory W Group if one of its affiliated companies had been terminated by OTRS within the last three years?

It would not be precluded from being hired.

120.	Would OTRS and Gregory W Group consider a product offering with exposure to Emerging Markets but no exposure to Frontier Markets?

Yes.
 
121.	Would OTRS and Gregory W Group consider a product offering with exposure to Developed Markets but no exposure to Emerging Markets?

Yes.

122.	Can participants submit multiple products for the same search?

Yes.

123.	Could you please clarify if a thumb drive containing performance is needed for each of the 5 RFP responses due or if one is needed to be sent with the hard copy to OK Teachers and one sent to the Gregory Group? 

Please send one thumb drive to each location – one to OTRS, one to Gregory W Group.

124.	Will OTRS consider a Developed Markets only International Equity Manager, i.e. benchmarked to the MSCI World Index?

Yes.

125.	In respect of the minimum criteria that the “Offeror must have at least five years’ experience providing the specified service” - would you consider managers with a strong 5+ year Global Equity track record, but who are able to offer an International Equity managed account for this client?

Yes.

126.	In the Performance section we are asked to provide positive and negative contributors to relative performance for the last five years. Can you please confirm if you'd prefer commentary or listing of contributors and detractors only? 

We would prefer commentary and a listing.

127.	As it relates to question 3 in the Investment Process section of the RFP, we plan to use the MSCI definition of emerging markets. Is this classification acceptable to the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma?

This classification is acceptable. 
 
128.	From a logistical standpoint, may we incorporate Excel files in the RFP document, in particular for the historical portfolio country and sector weights, to facilitate the submission and your review?

You may.

129.	In regards to the following two requirements can you please provide specific details in regards to what is expected for both educational training sessions,  as well as what is required in terms of available investment research? 

A.        Provide educational or training sessions for the Board and/or OTRS staff representatives on international equity investments in developed and emerging markets. 
These sessions would allow your firm to educate the Board and/or Staff into various aspects of international equity investing.

B.        Provide the staff with direct access to any available investment research and group publications produced by the Advisor’s firm.   

Please see answer provided above.

130.	In Portfolio Characteristics, Question 1, Portfolio Characteristics Summary, you request data for Beta, Alpha and R-Squared. Do you want this data for the quarter, or a trailing period ended 3/31/ 15 such as 1, 3 or 5 year? 

We would prefer trailing period.  Five year periods is preferred.
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